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Hagerstown MD 21740 

301-766-2800 
 

 
 
March 29, 2021 

 

ADDENDUM 1 
 

To: All Prospective Offerors 

From: Scott Bachtell, Supervisor of Purchasing 

Reference: RFP 2021-28 Natural Gas Supply 
 
This addendum is being issued to provide additions, corrections, clarifications and answers to certain questions raised 

referencing the original RFP packages and any resultant contracts for the above RFP. 

 

Revised Proposal Due Dates:                                                                          
The due dates have been revised as follows: 

 

Step One: 

Qualifications Proposal:                                                                April 12, 2021 by 11:00 AM EST 
Price Proposals:                                                                             April 12, 2021 by 11:00 AM EST 

WCPS/WCG provide final comments on proposed:                        April 21, 2021  

“Natural Gas Supply Agreement” - If Applicable: 

WCPS/WCG determines qualified Bidders from Step One:          April 23, 2021  

Step Two:                                                                                          Between April 26, 2021 and May 25, 2021 

 

“Best and Final” Price Proposal Due:     Addendum will be issued to quailed  

         Vendors with the submission date and 

         time 

 
Clarifications: 

 

1. Washington County Government has an account to be added as follows: 
 

• Account Number: 12983100 014 000 9 

 

• Meter Number: 12800112 

 

• Service Address: 17718 Virginia Avenue, Hagerstown, Maryland 21740-7084 

 

• Copy of the current bill is attached    

 

• Refer to 13 Month Usage History to obtain an estimate for annual usage  

 

Questions: 
 

1. Question:  The local utility will not provide us usage for the accounts.  Will you please send us 12 months 

usage for each account?  We cannot price nor bid without usage. 

  

Answer:  Please see the attached usage reports 



 

2. Question:  Can you please provide an estimated annual load for the accounts included in this RFP? 

  

Answer:  Please see the attached usage reports 

 

3. Question:  Can you please provide invoices for each account? 

  

Answer:  No - Please see the attached usage reports for account data  

 

4. Question:  Section 6 (c) notes that bidders must provide proof of Certificate of Registry. Please provide 

clarification on the meaning of this? 

  

Answer:  Awarded vendor must be licensed to do business in the State of Maryland.  You can search for 

your business name via the link provided in this section. 

 

5. Question:  Section 8 (d) notes that the County reserves the right to award within 90 days. Gas market prices 

change frequently every day. Would any pricing submitted be refreshable? 

  

Answer:  Section 8 (d), is not applicable to this procurement and is being removed. 

 

6. Question:  Section 9 (b) notes that the contract will be a Service Agreement. Whose agreement that would be. 

Is there another doc that the County intends the contract to be? 

  

Answer:  Bidders must submit a draft Natural Gas Service Purchase Contract for consideration, review, 

and comment by the School System and County legal department with the STEP ONE submission.  The 

Bidder’s draft agreement will incorporate this solicitation as part of the agreement. 

 

7. Question:  Section 25 (a) notes that the County may extend the contract to other agencies. Please confirm this 

would be at mutually agreed price? 

  

Answer:  This Bid includes the requirements of Washington County Government.  Otherwise, Section 

25 (a) states “This is conditioned upon mutual agreement of all parties pursuant to special requirements, 

which may be appended thereto.” 

 

8. Question:  Section 25 (d) notes that invoices must be sent in duplicate. Can this changed to one invoice? 

  

Answer:  The number of invoices provided would be mutually agreed to by the contracting parties. 

 

9. Question:  Attachment A, section 9 (b) notes that the County may increase or decrease quantities as required. 

Will this be as per a Material Usage Deviation percentage? Within +/- 25%?  We request this language be 

included:  Material Deviation-Seller may in its sole discretion pass through to Buyer any losses and/or costs 

incurred by Seller related to a deviation of +/-25% from Annual Contract Quantity (or, as applicable, estimated 

Contract Quantities) stated in the applicable Contract (which is not caused by weather). 

  

Answer:  The expectation and past experience is the additions and deletion have no impacted the overall 

annual consumption significantly. The following is acceptable: We request this language be included:  

Material Deviation-Seller may in its sole discretion pass through to Buyer any losses and/or costs 

incurred by Seller related to a deviation of +/-25% from Annual Contract Quantity (or, as applicable, 

estimated Contract Quantities) stated in the applicable Contract (which is not caused by weather). 

 

10. Question:  Do you want for the base and alternate prices, 10% swing or 100% swing? 

  

Answer:  All price quoted are for full service on demand with no variances in “swing” based on prior 

year historic annual consumption. 

 

11. Question:  Number 17. Billing and Payment. We may not be able to include all this on our invoices: Bid 



Number. WCPS Purchase Order or WCPS Contract Number. Brief Description of Item or Work Performed. 

Quantity. Unit Price Bid Extended Total for Each Item 

  

Answer:  All items are needed to process invoices – The following can be deleted but is preferred to be 

provided - Brief Description of Item or Work Performed. 

 

12. Question:  Number 18. Subsidiaries.  If an Affiliate, can we provide a Parental Guarantee from Parent? 

  

Answer:  YES 

 

13. Question:  Number 21. Hold Harmless. We agree, except if due to the Board's wrong doing. 

  

Answer:  WCPS does not agree to change this term and condition. 

 

14. Question:  Number 23. Termination for Convenience. Actual Damages will apply in instances of termination 

without cause. 

  

Answer:  WCPS does not agree to change this term and condition. 

 

15. Question:  Please confirm to exclude from bid prices State Sales Tax, GRT, or CAT taxes? 

  

Answer:  Pricing should exclude these items. Actual billing will include them if awarded the contact  

 

16. Question:  Are you requesting dual billing from the supplier and local utility?  Or consolidated billing? 

  

Answer:  If permitted by the utility we would like consolidated billing 

 

17. Question:  Will you disclose what product you are currently on? 

  

Answer:  Full on demand service based on a fixed price to the burner tip  

 

18. Question:  Would the buyer pay the difference between the Contract price and the current market price of 

forward energy purchased, should there be a termination that is not due to a breach of contract by the supplier? 

Would the buyer pay the cost to terminate, or sell back energy into the market? 

  

Answer:  Include terms for breach in the draft Agreement to be provided with your submission  

 

19. Question:  Has WCPS ever exercised the termination for convenience? If so, can you provide a history of this 

action? 

  

Answer:  No 

 

20. Question:  Should there be any change in law, tariffs or regulations that alters a suppliers cost to serve (e.g.: a 

new tax) will the buyer allow the supplier to alter their contract price? Does the buyer need to approve the cost 

change or can we just pass through after notification? 

  

Answer:  Include terms for Change in Law in the draft Agreement to be provided with your submission. 

A qualified Change in Law could result in a change in the contracted rate. Prior notification is required.  

 

The recent FERC Columbia Gas Transmission rate increase must be included in your price quotes and 

would not be considered a valid Change in Law since it was effective February 1, 2021.  

 

21. Question:  Will you award all accounts to one supplier? 

  

Answer:  Yes 

 



22. Question:  Please confirm contract extensions will be done at a mutually upon agreed price? 

  

Answer:  There are no extensions on this RFP. 

 

23. Question:  Please confirm accounts would be added at a mutually agreed upon price? 

  

Answer:  Yes, added at a mutually agreed to price. 

 

24. Question:  What are you requesting for days in payment terms? 

  

Answer:  Please reference Section I, Number 17 (c). 

 

25. Question:  Do you want separate documents for the Qualifications and Pricing Proposal? 

  

Answer:  YES clearly stated so in the RFP 

 

26. Question:  Does WCPS want hard copies and a Flash drive, when submitting the Proposals? 

  

Answer:  Yes, One Hard Copy and One Flash Drive 

 

27. Question:  Can you please verify the Account numbers? 

 

A-2, Washington County Government: 

 

 
Answer:  Updates on the above accounts are underway and my not be available until after the Step One 

Submission due date. Unless notified prior to the submission due date for the Step One Qualifications 

and Price Proposals on April 12, 2021 by 11:00 AM EST, do not include these accounts in the estimated 

annual usage and Price Proposals. 

A1, Washington County Public Schools:

 

 
Answer:  Updates on the above account are underway and my not be available until after the Step One 

Submission due date. Unless notified prior to the submission due date for the Step One Qualifications 

and Price Proposals on April 12, 2021 by 11:00 AM EST, do not include this account in the estimated 

annual usage and Price Proposals. 

28. Question:  Can you provide a proxy account we can use for the new Washington County Government 

account? Since the account will have no data history. 

  

Account Number Location Name Address Notes: 

10542041-003 Sheriffs Dept. 500 W. Maryland Parkway Account not active or terminated 

12983100 013 Administration Bldg. 100 W. Washington Street Account not active or terminated 

1298311000  112 Administration Bldg. 100 W. Washington Street Account not active or terminated 

127571890030000 Washington Co Transit 1000 W. Wash. St., Hag, MD 21740 Account not active or terminated 

13344658 009 000 6 Wash Co Regional Airport 18434 Showalter Road 10/6/2020 

158232206 001 000 7 Hagerstown Regional Airport Vault  18430 Henson Bv Account not active or terminated 

10543246 001 000 2 Pioneer Hook & Ladder Co # 1 21 West Franklin St PO Box 2799 Hagerstown, MD 21741-2799 2/28/2017 

10543115 001 000 9 Antietam Fire Co 2 113 Summit Ave Hagerstown, MD 21740-5508 9/30/2018 

10543115 002 000 Antietam Fire Co 2 790 Potomac Avenue, Hagerstown, MD 21740-5508 Account not active or terminated 

10545139 001 000 7 First Hose Fire Co C!O GW Saum 33 S Potomac St PO Box 4958 Hagerstown, MD 21742-0958 12/31/2017 

10545140 001 000 7 First Hose Fire Co C/O GW Saum 33 S Potomac St PO Box 4958 Hagerstown, MD 21742-0958 Account not active or terminated 

 

Just started in October - Vincent Rauth Groh? Barbara Ingram School of Fine Arts BIS 17599931 002 

 



Answer:  Copy of the current bill is attached as shown in the “Clarifications” Section. Refer 

to 13 Month Usage History on the invoice provided to obtain an estimate for annual usage.  

 

Thank you for your interest in bidding with Washington County Public Schools and we apologize for any 

inconvenience this may have caused. 
 
Sincerely, 

Scott Bachtell 
Scott Bachtell 

Supervisor of Purchasing 

 
  

 
 
This Addendum is Five (5) pages and includes the following attachments post on the WCPS Purchasing website: 

WCG Account 12983100 014 000 9 Invoice 

WCPS - Wash County - Fire Depts Annual Consumption Natural Gas by account March 22, 2021 

 


